
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard LU7 1HD 

5 August 2022 
 
To:  Members of the Older Persons Sub-Committee (Councillors M Freeman, 
R Goodchild, T Morris, S Owen, G Perham and F Kharawala) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Older Persons Sub-Committee to 
be held on Friday, 19 August 2022 commencing at 10.00 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s Register 
of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 
the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by the 
Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 
 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(e)(f)(g) and 3(h). 
 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE Friday, 19 August 2022 
 

 

 

 

 (a) To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Older 
Persons Sub Committee held on 26 May 2022 (attached) in accordance 
with Standing Order 12. 
 

(b) To receive information updates on matters arising from the previous 
meeting (if appropriate). 

 

5.   LEIGHTON-LINSLADE HELPING HANDS  

 

 To welcome representatives of the Helping Hands group to provide information 
to the Sub-Committee on the work of the group. 
 

6.   PROJECT UPDATES  

 

 To receive a verbal update on work progress including the Digital Support 
helpline and work towards the launch of the Community Agent initiative. 
 

7.   TABLET LOAN SCHEME (Pages 5 - 18) 

 

 To receive a presentation on research regarding a potential tablet loan scheme 
and to consider next steps.  
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 20 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

OLDER PERSONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 26 MAY  2022 AT 1000 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  G Perham   
             J M Freeman  
             S Owen 
    R Goodchild 
              

                      Also in attendance:       V Cannon, Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services (remotely) 
  S Sandiford, Deputy Town Clerk 
  L Stainsby (Digital Champion Co-ordinator,  
  Citizens Online) 
   
            Members of the Public: 0 

  
45/OP   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 2022-2023  
 

It was proposed and seconded that Councillor S Owen be appointed Chair of the 
Sub-Committee for 2022-23. There were no further nominations. 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor S Owen as Chair of the Older Persons 
Sub-Committee for 2022-23. 

 
Councillor Owen took the Chair.  

 
 46/OP     APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR 2022-2023 

 
It was proposed and seconded that Councillor M Freeman be appointed Vice 
Chair of the Sub-Committee for 2022-23. There were no further nominations. 
 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor M Freeman as Vice Chair of the Older 
Persons Sub-Committee for 2022-23.  

 
47/OP     APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Morris and 
Kharawala.  
 

48/OP     DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
Councillor Goodchild declared a personal interest as Chair of Salisbury House 
GP surgery Patient Participation Group.  
 

 49/OP QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

  There were no questions from members of the public. 
   
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Older Persons  Sub-Committee 26 MAY 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 21 

 50/OP MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

(a) The sub-committee received the draft minutes of the Old Persons Sub 
Committee held on 17 February 2022. A typographical error would be corrected.  

 
RESOLVED that that minutes of the meeting of the Older Persons Sub 
Committee held on 17 February 2022 be approved and signed as a correct 
record. 
 
(b)       It was noted that contractors for the new care home Marigold House 
had recently issued a newsletter. The Chair advised he would invite Central 
Bedfordshire Council colleagues to give a further update about the project later 
in the year.  
 
42/OP It was also noted that Cultural and Economic Services Committee had 
agreed the recommendation to award 55up Grant Funds and that funds had 
been issued.  
 
43/OP A correction was made to the heading; ‘Delivery’. Committee was advised 
that recruitment had taken place with an offer being made subject to satisfactory 
references. It was hoped the new person could start in late June and continue 
with the project work.   

 
  51/OP 55UP TECHNOLOGY HELPLINE UPDATE  
 

By invitation, Liz Stainsby, Digital Champion Co-ordinator of Citizens Online 
attended the meeting to give a report and presentation regarding the 55Up 
technology helpline project. 
 
The Sub-Committee heard about previous experience in other locations and how 
the Digital Champion role worked. Citizens Online had generally found that 
learners were an even male-female split and ranged from complete beginners to 
those with a little digital experience but wishing to learn more. Some learners 
had previously had no interest in using technology and finding something that 
linked to their interests was key (e.g. cooking, gardening, sport). Support was 
given in different ways such as 1-1 appointments, drop-in sessions or small 
groups. Often the learning was focussed on a specific task for example online 
shopping, using social media or setting up an app such as the NHS app. Online 
safety was continually promoted and explained. 
 
Feedback had shown that people tended to learn best when shown what to do 
and then supported to do it themselves. Digital champions did not need to be 
technology experts but required lots of patience and enthusiasm. Citizens Online 
offered ongoing training and support to champions.  
 
Callers to the helpline could leave a message and would be called back by a co-
ordinator, who would further assess their needs and either assign to a volunteer 
champion for remote support or advise what face to face options were available. 
For face-to-face support people would usually see the same champion and 
therefore be able to build up trust.  
 

Page 2



Older Persons  Sub-Committee 26 MAY 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 22 

Research showed that Leighton-Linslade had just under 30% of its population in 
the 55+ age bracket, many of whom were already online but might still need 
support expanding their digital skills.   
 
The helpline was being promoted by way of social media (targeted to friends and 
family), advertisements in the local newspaper, Bee Local magazine and About 
Town newsletter and inclusion in the Bassett Road surgery PPG newsletter as 
well as the emerging updated version of the “yellow book” of information for older 
people. Citizens Online had also been networking with local organisations.  
 
One digital champion was awaiting a DBS check before being able to start 
offering support at the Tuesday Chatty Café. Another champion would offer 
remote only support and interest had been expressed by several others. The 
focus in the short term would be on continuing to recruit and train volunteers, to 
start face to face support sessions and to continue promoting the scheme. 
Discussions would also continue with the Leighton Buzzard Library service about 
the potential for partnership working.  
 
A query was raised about how success would be measured. The aspiration was 
to recruit 20 digital champions over the initial two-year project term to provide a 
sound basis for the future. The impact would be measured by individual case 
studies. 
 
Ms Stainsby was thanked for her presentation and for attending the meeting.  

   
52/OP    COMMUNITY AGENTS   

 
Further to previous discussion, officers had undertaken further research into the 
potential for funding or part funding a “Community Agent” through the 
Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity. An example was given of Biggleswade 
where the scheme had operated since 2016 and was now an ongoing contract. 
Biggleswade town council funded one person for two days per week with regular 
reports to committee demonstrating that the impact could be meaningful. 
 
A cost for the period September 2022-March 2023 had been obtained at £8,476 
to include £750 start up costs. The cost for the following full financial year would 
be £13,212.  
 
The sub committee noted that costs for the current year could be covered by the 
£10,780.40 underspend from monies previously allocated to projects that came 
in under the estimated spend.  However, future funding would need careful 
consideration and council support. It was felt that such a scheme would need to 
run for at least two full years to see any demonstrable impact.  
 
It was proposed and seconded that a recommendation be put forward to the 
parent committee for consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDED to the Cultural and Economic Services Committee to 
support the funding of a Community Agent through BRCC for an initial 
period of 2 years and 7 months from September 2022, with costs for 2022-
23 to be met from existing Older Persons budget allocation but noting that 

Page 3



Older Persons  Sub-Committee 26 MAY 2022  
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 23 

commitment to funding for the next two financial years would be required 
by Council to demonstrate any meaningful impact.  
 
It was noted that should the project proceed, the role of the sub committee might 
change to primarily monitoring of the service contracts with BRCC and Citizens 
Online and this would need further discussion.  

  
53/OP    PROJECT UPDATES 

 
Early-stage discussions on the potential to partner with Leighton Buzzard Library 
for a tablet loan scheme had taken place. Progressing setting up the loan 
scheme was held until the Technology Helpline was up and running first. 
Committee has allocated £15k of its original budget   towards the creation of the 
loan scheme. The library service was short staffed following the pandemic but 
was now actively recruiting so it was hoped that discussions could be 
reconvened once the new officer was in place.  
 
There were no updates regarding the yellow book update or the grant scheme.  

  
      54/OP  NEXT MEETING DATES 
 

The next meeting would be provisionally moved to Friday, 19 August at 10:00am 
but this would be confirmed depending on staff availability. 
 
It was suggested that BRCC and the Helping Hands group could be invited to 
attend the next meeting.  
 
The sub committee placed on record its thanks to Sarah Jewell and Vivien 
Cannon for their considerable work in progressing the projects supporting older 
people and wished them all the best for the future.  

 
   

 
 The meeting closed at 11:30 hours.  

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 26 MAY 2022. 

 

 

 

Chair                 19 AUGUST 2022 

Page 4



Friday 19th August 2022

INSERT MAIN TITLE HERETablet Lending Scheme  

❖Initial Consultations 

❖Potential options and considerations 

❖Moving forward 

P
age 5

A
genda Item

 7



Consultations and Information 
Gathering 

- Phone call consultation with Leeds Libraries- 04.07.2022

- Teams consultation with Wigan Council Lending Scheme- 07.07.2022

- Good things Foundation- National Databank 

- Loti- The London Office of Technology and Innovation- ‘How to Run a 

Lending or Gifting Scheme’ 

- Mi Wifi Final Report- ‘Lewisham Library and Information Pilot Tablet Lending’ 

- The Vale Tablet Loan Scheme- ‘A Guide to developing a Device Loan Scheme’  

‘numerous benefits can come from routinely making this technology available through 
Libraries, particularly increasing digital literacy, reducing isolation, keeping people active
and engaged with each other and their communities’

Lewisham Library and Information Service (2018)
Mi Wifi Final Report- mi_wifi_self-evaluation_report_2018.pdf (london.gov.uk)

P
age 6

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mi_wifi_self-evaluation_report_2018.pdf


Considerations 
How do we want individuals to access the tablets? Who will manage the tablets? 

Library Lending Scheme-
Libraries manage the tablets
and loan is through library 
Membership. Spoken with 
Rechelle Dua- still interested to 
pursue. 

Accessed through Digital Champions Referral
Tablets stored within LLTC and loaned out with 
Digital Champion Referral

Referral from range of 
Organisations 
Community Agent 
LLHH 
Citizens Online 

Considerations:
- Beginning with pilot scheme?
- Targeting residents 

P
age 7



Considerations 
Is further data needed to help identify those in need of a tablet lending scheme? 
Surveys? 

P
age 8



Considerations 

What type of tablet to use? - I pads:

- Android tablets 

✓ Ease of use 
✓ Lots of how to guides available 
- Cost 

How many tablets available?    - consider initial pilot scheme- 5? 

✓ Cheaper
- Less available for software 
management

‘For the purposes of this project, which was not focussing on the ability of participants
to buy the technology, we opted for iPads. We did so because we found the hardware 
to be compatible with the monitoring and security software the council could control.’
mi_wifi_self-evaluation_report_2018.pdf (london.gov.uk)

Adam Andrews, Daisy Communications: ipads are easier to use/more intuitive, other tablets can be slower

P
age 9

https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/mi_wifi_self-evaluation_report_2018.pdf


How to manage the tablets
Considerations for security and data protection. 

Leeds Libraries
Outsource their software
to company Asavie Moda-
Allows remote management of 
Ipads, blocks content and can push 
Through messages to user such as 
Data usage. 
MaaS360- handles remote lock & 
Wipe can clear iTunes accounts which 
may get used. 

Wigan Council Lending Scheme
Jadu- software system 
Referral system that is pushed through 
to their digital skills team and then tablet
collected from library. 
Library team restore ipads to factory 
settings before lending out tablet again.
Don’t monitor the usage on the ipads,
just have an ‘acceptable use’ policy.  

Mobile Device Management: Geo-tracking, Lost mode, Restart, Remote lock, Completely 
wipe the device data, run activity reports, Push/Remove apps, Restrict/block apps

Lewisham Libraries
MDM software- Mobile Iron plus additional data filtering software Wandera- monitor 
Internet traffic, provide analytics, apps used/downloaded, amount of data used, block 
Inappropriate content

Investigating options with Virtual IT, Jam Crackers and Cloudy IT 

P
age 10



Data for Tablets

- Sim Cards- high street companies- Leeds Library- o2, Wigan Library- Vodafone 
Rolling 5GB data-recommended by Leeds Library

‘Pooled data is the perfect option if you are unsure of the amount of data required
and need to share the data between all the devices. This can be discussed with your 
network provider’ Loan Scheme Brochure Update.indd (gov.wales)

- National Databank- The Good Things Foundation- potential for pre-loaded sim cards
with data? Needs further exploration. 

‘The National Databank provides free sims and mobile data…. Community organisations 
can apply to access databank, enabling them to provide data to people in their
communities that need it’ National Databank - Good Things Foundation

-Daisy Communications- suggestion of 12GB per ipad, no danger of going over if choosing to stream videos etc. 

P
age 11

https://www.digitalcommunities.gov.wales/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/Device-Loan-Scheme-Guide.pdf
https://www.goodthingsfoundation.org/databank/


Loan Agreements
Leeds Library- created loan agreement as only had 25% of chargers returned

Wigan Council- gives new user Welcome Pack with bag of equipment and user guides. 

Lewisham Library:

P
age 12



Pre & Post Lending Questionnaires 
Leeds Library- Case Studies vital to development of the scheme 
Wigan Council- focus on Digital inclusion had pre/post questionnaires focusing on 
5 essential digital skills 

Vale Tablet
Scheme: 

P
age 13



Vale Tablet
Scheme: 

P
age 14



Costs

Current allocation of funds for 
Tablet lending scheme:

£15,000

P
age 15



Costs
Lewisham Library- much bigger scale but interesting to look at list of equipment needed

P
age 16



Next Steps

❑ Who do we want to be able to access the tablets? 

❑ How do we want individuals to access the tablets?

❑ What type of tablets do we use?

❑ Investigate costs of data and mobile device management software

❑ Creating Loan Agreements 

❑ Creating Acceptable Use Policy 

❑ Creating Pre/Post Lending Questionnaires 

❑ Creating timescale for initial pilot scheme- what does success look like? 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 18


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 TABLET LOAN SCHEME

